	Individual Action Plan Update for China for 2009

	
Highlights of recent policy developments which indicate how China is progressing towards the Bogor Goals and key challenges it faces in its efforts to meet the Goals. 

	




	IAP Chapter (and Sub-Chapter and Section Heading, if any) Note 1
	Improvements made since  2008 IAP Note 2
	Further Improvements Planned Note 2

	Tariffs
	Applied Tariffs
On Jan.1, 2009, China reduced MFN import tariff rates on 5 tariff lines (HS 8-digit level). The average MFN tariff rate remains 9.80% in 2009. 
In 2009, the average MFN tariff rate is 15.2% for the agricultural goods (WTO definition) and 8.9% for the non-agricultural goods. 
Tariff Preferences
Under CEPAs, Mainland China provides zero tariff rates on the products originated from Hong Kong and Macao, China. On Jan. 1, 2009, the number of tariff lines (HS 8-digit level) which are applicable to zero tariff rate rose to 1539 and 681 for Hong Kong and Macao respectively. On Jul 1, 2009, China further provided zero tariff rates to 28 and 475 products originated from Hong Kong and Macao respectively.
 
Under the Free Trade Agreement between China and Pakistan, on Jan.1, 2009, China further reduced tariff rates. In 2009, there are 6191 tariff lines whose agreement tariff rate is lower than the respective MFN tariff rate.
 
Under Asia Pacific Trade Agreement, on Jan 1, 2009, China further reduced tariff rate on 1 product. In 2009, there are 1751 products (HS 8-digit level) originated from South Korea, India, Sri Lanka, Bangladesh and Laos applicable to the agreement tariff rate .
 
Under China-Chile Free Trade Agreement, on Jan 1 2009, China further reduced tariff rates on 2684 products (8-digit HS code) originated from Chile.
 
In 2009, China further reduced tariff rates according to the schedule under China-ASEAN Free Trade Agreement.

Under China-New Zealand Free Trade Agreement, China started tariff reduction from Oct 1, 2008 according to the schedule. On Jan 1, 2009, there are 6989 products (HS 8-digit level) originated from New Zealand applicable to the agreement tariff rate.
Under China-Singapore Free Trade Agreement, on Jan 1, 2009, China reduced tariff rates on 2701 products (HS 8-digit level) originated from Singapore.
From Jan 1, 2009, China unilaterally applied special preferential tariff rates on certain products originated from 41 Least Developed Countries. 
 
Tariff Quotas
In 2009, China applied tariff quotas rates on 8 imported goods (45 HS 8-digit tariff lines).

	  
 
 
Tariff Preferences
 China will continue to reduce/eliminate tariffs as committed in the preferential agreements.

	Non-Tariff Measures
	In 2009, 83 tariff lines (under HS 8-digit level) subject to import licensing.


	-

	Services


	Financial Services
 
Banking

· To honor the commitments to the WTO, China has fully opened the banking sector and granted national treatment to foreign banks in Chinese market from the end of 2006;

· The State Council amended and promulgated the Regulation of People’s Republic of China on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks on November 11, 2006 and the CBRC revised and issued the Rules for Implementing the Regulations of the People’s Republic of China on the Administration of Foreign funded Banks on November 24, 2006. 
· According to the newly amended Rules and Regulations, geographic and customer restrictions on Renminbi business as well as all other non-prudential restrictions on foreign bank operations were lifted on December 11, 2006；

· Foreign banks are encouraged to develop their business in China in various forms of commercial presence. The CBRC encourages those foreign banks with wide branch networks, large deposit base and willingness to develop Renminbi retail business to be locally- incorporated, while allowing them to select their own form of commercial presence. Locally-incorporated foreign banks shall enjoy the same policies as the Chinese banks in terms of registered capital, setting-up of branches, required operating capital and regulatory standards. 

Meanwhile, business licensing and authorization categories of foreign bank branches have been simplified with a reasonable reduction in the required operating capital. While maintaining the existing business scope, foreign bank branches are allowed to receive a time deposit of no less than RMB 1 million from Chinese citizens; the percentage restriction on foreign exchange deposits collected domestically has been further lifted; qualified branches of foreign banks are allowed to apply for local incorporation at any time to enjoy corresponding treatments.

Current Entry Requirements
· The establishment of a foreign-funded bank and its branch shall be subject to examination and approval by the CBRC.

For detail information, please refer to www.cbrc.gov.cn .

According to the newly amended Rules and Regulations:
· To establish a wholly foreign-funded bank or a Chinese-foreign joint venture bank, the shareholder should have the total assets of not less than US$10 billion at the end of the year prior to the submission of the application;

· To establish a branch of a foreign bank in China, a foreign bank should have the total assets of not less than US$20 billion at the end of the year prior to the submission of the application.

· To engage in the RMB businesses, an operational foreign-funded bank should have opened business within the territory of the People’s Republic of China for at least three years prior and have been profitable for two consecutive years prior to the application.

· For detail information, please refer to www.cbrc.gov.cn   .

Insurance
Tentative Measures for the Overseas Investment of Insurance Capital. On Jul.26, 2007, CIRC along with the People’s Bank of China and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, released the tentative measures for the overseas investment management, information disclosure and reports and other aspects of overseas investment of insurance capital. These measures are of great significance to strengthening the management of overseas investment of insurance capital, prevention of risks, guarantee of the legitimate rights and interests of the insured and the parties of the overseas investment of insurance capital.
Administrative Measures for the Pension Insurance Business of Insurance Companies. It is Issued by CIRC on Nov.2, 2007. The measures outline regulations on such aspects as business operators, pension annuity insurance business, enterprise annuity management business, and legal liability, with a view to regulating the pension insurance business of insurance companies, and protecting the legitimate rights and interests of the parties of pension insurance business. The measures play a positive role in driving the improvement of the multilevel pension insurance system.
Administrative Provisions on the Solvency of Insurance Companies. It is issued by the CIRC on July 10 2008, and put into force on Sep 1. 2008. It is very important for strengthening supervision over the solvency of insurance companies, safeguarding interests of the insured and promoting the healthy, stable and sustainable development of the insurance industry.

Measures for the Administration of Insurance Protection Fund. It went into force on Sep.11 2008 and had significant impact on the standardized raising, management and use of insurance protection funds, guarantee of policy holder’s legitimate interests, healthy development promotion of insurance industry, and maintenance of financial stability.
Measures of the China Insurance Regulatory Commission for the Disclosure of Government Information. It is issued by the CIRC on November 18 2008, clearly provisioned to ensure citizens, legal persons and other organizations to legitimately obtain information of insurance regulatory government, improve the transparency of insurance supervision, promote legitimate administration, and fully utilize the service role of government information for public production, livelihood, economic and social activities.

Notice of China Insurance Regulatory Commission of Issues Concerning the Classified Supervision Over Insurance Companies. It is Issued by the CIRC on Dec. 30 2008. It is very important to further enhance scientific, pertinent, and effective supervision over insurance, strengthen dynamic early warning monitoring on risk, pragmatically prevent and resolve risk.

 
Securities
New regulations (from July, 2008-July, 2009)
Administrative Measures for Sponsorship of Securities Offering & Listing(issued in Oct. 2008)

The measures are aimed at standardizing sponsorship for securities offering and listing, improving the quality of listed companies and the professional expertise of securities firms, safeguarding the legitimate rights of investors and advancing the healthy development of the securities market. Issuers should engage securities firms with sponsor qualifications to perform duties of sponsorship for IPO, secondary offering (new shares or convertible bonds) and other activities prescribed by the CSRC.
Tentative Provisions on Approving the Business Scope of Securities Firms(issued in Oct. 2008) 

The provisions are aimed at clarifying matters related to review and approval of the business scope of securities firms. The business scope also includes innovative business such as margin trading.

Guidelines on the OFII Ombudsman Scheme(issued in Oct. 2008)
The Guidelines are aimed at guiding QFIIs to strengthen compliance and standardizing management of QFII Ombudsman. QFIIs should designate qualified staff to act as Ombudsman.

 
For detail information, please refer to http://www.csrc.gov.cn 
 
Telecommunications Services
By the end of August, 2009, 52 applications for foreign investment in the value-added telecom services have been received, of which 34 applications have been granted Examination Opinion on Foreign Investment in Telecom Services, and 16 granted operating licenses for telecom services by MIIT, China.

 
 
Portal Services
The amended Postal Law promulgated on April 24, 2009 will take effect on October 1, 2009.

 
For detail information, please refer to
http://www.chinapost.gov.cn/ 
 
Courier Services
1. The amended Postal Law promulgated on April 24, 2009 will take effect on October 1, 2009.

2. Regulations on the Express Services License promulgated on September 1, 2009 will take effect on October 1, 2009.
For detail information, please refer to
http://www.chinapost.gov.cn/ 
Energy Services
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Accounting Services
AS IN [2008]IAP
Legal Services
From September, 2008 to August, 2009, 17 foreign and 3 Hong Kong law firms obtained licenses for establishing representative offices; 1 foreign law firm was approved to establish a second representative office.
Communication Services-Audio-visual
Operational Requirements:
A. A film production company may produce films within or outside the territory of China in collaboration with film producers outside China.

A). Film genres permitted for co-production include:

a. Feature films (including stage art films and drama performance films);

b. Animation films (including cartoon films, puppet show films and paper-cutting films);

c. Science and educational films;

d. Documentary films;

B). Film production through joint efforts includes the following forms:

a. Co-production. Both Chinese and  foreign collaborators co-invest on (by means of cash, labor service or other material stuff) and co-produce a film. The collaborators shall share the profits and the risks of the co-produced film in proportion to their shares of co-investment respectively;

b. Assisted co-production. The foreign collaborator provides the funds and the main crew members for the co-production to make part of the shots of the film within the territory of China, while the Chinese collaborator provides assistance by ways of facilities, equipments, film-shooting sites and labor service. If the theme and the main crew members of the co-production are provided by the Chinese collaborator while the foreign collaborator provides only the filming funds, it should not be classified as an assisted co-production;

c. Entrusted co-production. The foreign collaborator provides the filming funds and entrusts its Chinese collaborator(s) to make the film. This is generally adopted in short film making.

B. Entry for Foreign investment to refurbish, build and manage cinemas.

Requirements for foreign investors to make investment on cinemas:

A) No wholly foreign-owned cinemas are allowed to be built, nor cinema lines are allowed to be set up by foreign investors.

B) The foreign investor should meet the following requirements for making investment on cinemas:

a. It must follow the local geographical distribution and structural planning regulations on cultural and entertainment facilities;

b. The registered capital of the investor shall not be less than RMB Ұ 6,000,000;

c. Fixed business site(s) (screening halls) is (are) required;

d. For a Chinese-foreign equity joint venture cinema, the investment of the Chinese collaborator should be no less than 51% of the total registered capital. For a Chinese-foreign cooperative joint venture cinema, the Chinese collaborator shall own the leading management rights;

e. Operation period of a Chinese-foreign equity joint venture and a Chinese-foreign cooperative joint venture shall not exceed the limit of 30 years;

f. All joint ventures must follow related laws and regulations of China.

Information is also available at website http://www.sarft.gov.cn
For distribution of audio-visual products, foreign investment is not allowed.
Licensing and Qualification Requirements of Service Providers:

A. Application procedures for co-producing a film.

A) Chinese and foreign collaborators shall submit the proposed Chinese Mandarin script (original script in any other language is requested to be translated into Chinese Mandarin) and related documents to China Film Co-Production Corporation (CFCC) for advice.

B) Within 7 days from the day it receives the proposed script, CFCC shall present an advisory opinion. CFCC should submit to the State Administration of Radio, Film and Television (SARFT) the proposed script, the advisory opinion in written form, as well as the application for the co-production submitted by Chinese and foreign collaborators, other related documents and the budget of the co-production.

C) Within 20 working days from the day it receives the application for the co-production, SARFT shall decide whether to approve the application or not in written form. The applicant has the right to inquire or appeal to the superior competent administration department if it has not received the approval or disapproval within the deadline. If the co-production application and related documents submitted by the applicant cannot meet the requirements, SARFT may ask the applicant to make amendments within a certain time. Deadline set for the procedures of examination and approval shall be postpone accordingly.

D) Once granted the approval for film production, Chinese and foreign collaborators shall sign a sole contract under the assistance of the CFCC and submit it to SARFT for record. Chinese and foreign collaborators may start the co-production only if the contract for film production through joint Chinese and foreign efforts is signed. Co-productions on specific subjects, such as environment protection, agriculture, industry of the purposes of scientific and academic researches or for reference in teaching should also be applied for examination and approval of SARFT.

B. Documents needed for refurbishment and building of a foreign-invested cinema.

A) Project application for setting up a foreign-invested cinema;

B) For the Chinese collaborator, certification of the statutory representative, documents related to the right of land usage of the cinema site, as well as bank credit certification are needed;

C) For the foreign collaborator, Certification of the statutory representative, the bank credit certification and the certification of financial position provided by an accounting firm are needed;

D) The preliminary approval notice for the name of the foreign-invested cinema issued by Administration of Industrial and commerce;

E) Feasibility study report, contract and charters;

F) Other necessary documents requested by related laws regulations and the administration department that exercises the procedures of examination and approval.

C. Applying procedures for setting up a joint venture cinema.

A) The Chinese collaborator shall submit application to the local commerce administrative department of the province.

B) After seeking comments from the local administrative department in charge of film industry of the province, the local commerce administrative department of the province shall, in accordance with related laws on foreign investment, exercise the procedures of examination and approval, submit it to Ministry of Commerce, SARFT, and Ministry of Culture for the records, and issue the Certificate of Approval for Foreign Investment Enterprise for the foreign investment enterprise approved to be set up.

C) Within one month from the day it receives the Certificate of Approval for Foreign Investment Enterprise, the foreign-invested cinema approved to be set up shall go through registration at the administrative department of industry and commerce of the province by showing the Certificate of Approval for Foreign Investment Enterprise.

D) After the building and/or the refurbishment is completed and being granted an acceptance certificate from related administration department, the foreign-invested cinema shall apply for the Permit for Film Projection from the local administrative department in charge of film industry of the province by showing the Certificate of Approval for Foreign Investment Enterprise and the Business License and may start film projection business henceforth.

Information is also available on the following website

http://www.sarft.gov.cn/index2.htm
Health Related & Social Services
New regulations
Supplementary Provision II to Interim Measures for Administration of Sino-Foreign Joint Venture and Cooperative

Regulations on Administration of Hongkong and Macau Physician's Short-Term Practising in Inland
Regulations on Administration of Taiwan Physician's Short-Term Practising in Mainland
 

From January 1, 2009 to August 24, 2009, 1 Administration of Sino-Foreign Joint Venture and Cooperative were approved to establish, and 4 new application for establish

Tourism and Travel Related Services
Tourism administrative department will further improve domestic policies and regulations, take measures to promote the market environment, encourage the opening of market and enhance communications.

The newly revised “Regulations on travel agencies” has come into effect from May 1st, 2009.
Information is also available on the following website

http://www.cnta.gov.cn/

Architecture services
Architecture and related engineering services
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Real estate services 
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Urban Planning
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Architecture Design Services
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
 
Transport Services-Air
New regulations
State Council Order No. 553: Regulation on Civil Airports 
CCAR-332: Regulation on Security for Public Air Transport Passengers 

CCAR-287: Regulation on License for Foreign Air Carriers’ Flights 

CAAC  Order No. 99: Measures on Advanced Information Provision of Passengers in International Flights

China has concluded 98 bilateral Air Services Agreements with related partners until August 2009.

Information is also available on the following website:
 http://www.caac.gov.cn/

Environmental Services
AS IN [2008]IAP

	 
Banking
· The opening-up strategy of Chinese banking sector should adhere to the following four fundamental principles: 1. respond to the needs of economic development with an optimized framework; 2. be able to promote the deepening of banking reforms, fair market competition, mutual benefits and enhanced competitiveness; 3. honor our WTO commitments and further dispark the domestic banking sector. 4. be accompanied by prudential regulation in order to maintain the stability of the banking system and to safeguard the financial security.

Securities
China will allow qualified foreign companies to list in China’s stock exchanges by issuing shares or DRs, The CSRC is preparing related rules and regulations which will be issued at appropriate time.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Telecommunications Services
 
In accordance with China’s WTO commitments on telecommunications services and relevant WTO rules, China will further improve its domestic policies and regulations in telecommunications sector.
 
  
  
 
Portal Services
1. Develop and issue the Universal Postal Services Standard

2. Develop and issue Regulations on the Scope of Monopolized Services of the Postal Operator by the State Council.
  
Courier Services
Develop supporting laws and regulations of the "Postal Law" 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Accounting Services
 To issue the Guidelines for Enterprise Internal Control.


	Investment


	Further efforts have been made on decentralization and simplification to streamline and simplify screening and approval procedures on FDI. Examination and approval on establishment and alteration issues of stock-holding companies, holding companies, venture capital companies, financial leasing companies and other foreign investment enterprise in service sectors, have been delegated to provincial MOFCOM branch authorities and national Economic and Technological Development Zones within local approval authorization (100 million USD for encouraged and permitted sectors and 50 million USD for restricted sectors).
Information is also available on the following website:
http://www.mofcom.gov.cn/ 

	Efforts will be made in deregulating and simplifying the administrative procedures for foreign invested partnerships, i.e. the procedures for establishing such partnerships and for adjusting the business scopes thereof.
Efforts on simplification and decentralization of screening and approval issues on FDI will be intensified on a broader and in depth scale, including liberalization and facilitation efforts on foreign investment.

	Standards and Conformance


	Alignment of standards with international standards where appropriate 
AS IN [2008]IAP
   
Alignment of standards with international standards in priority areas agreed by the SCSC
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
 
Active participation in the international standardisation activities of international standardizing bodies
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Identification of specific requirements, assistance and/or activities for technical infrastructure development
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Continuously strive to increase transparency of their standards and conformance requirements, including implementation of APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards on Standards and Conformance
AS IN [2008]IAP
 
	-

	Customs Procedures


	China attaches great importance to international customs activities and is an active player in the work of international organizations including the WCO, WTO, APEC, ASEM etc.. Through international cooperation and its own efforts, China has implemented most of the CAP items within the target dates set by SCCP. 
 
Greater Public Availability of Information
China Customs reconstructed the official customs website, by which local customs websites could be connected. More practical and effective approaches to achieve greater public availability of customs information has been explored and put into use.
The website address is :
http://www.customs.gov.cn
 
 
 
 
Paperless Trading
To coordinate the application of paperless trading, China Customs developed and applied the Clearance Management System (H2000) across all customs districts in China.
China Customs established and operated the China E-Port System, an integrated clearance information data form which realized data-exchanging and sharing between G-G and G-B, and provided on-line transaction processing service and auxiliary support to enterprises.
 
The Measures for Manifest Administration for Inbound and Outbound Means of Transportation of P.R.C has become effective on January 1st,2009， which required electrical pre-arrival declaration.
 
 
 Provision of Temporary Importation Facilities
Implementing the ATA carnet towards the 2008 Olympics related cargoes and materials
 
Organizing a national training workshop concerning ATA carnet in Sept. 2007.
 
 
Implementation of Clear Appeals Provisions
Applying a complete system on supervision of customs enforcement.
 
 
Alignment with WTO Valuation Agreement

Fully implementing the Agreement.
 
 
Adoption of Kyoto Convention
Fully implementing the General Annex and the specific annex we joined.
 
 
 
 
Implementation of Harmonized System Convention
2007 HS version has been translated into Chinese and was implemented as of January 1, 2007.
 
 
 
Implementation of An Advance Classification Ruling System
Applying the ACRS in the Customs operation system.
 
 
Implementation of WTO Obligations and Rules of Origin
Fully implementing the WTO Obligations and Rules of Origin.
 
 
Implementation of the TRIPs Agreement
Fully implementing the TRIPs Agreement.
 
 
 
 
Development of A Compendium of Harmonized Trade Data Elements
The current requirements of customs data were analysed in comparison with the WCO Data Model.
 
 
Adoption of Systematic Risk Management Techniques

Applying risk management in the whole Customs operation system.
 
Implementation of WCO Guidelines on Express Consignment Clearance
The target objectives of Express consignment clearance contained in the SCCP CAP ITEM have been achieved.
 
 
Integrity

The integrity action plan has been implemented and risk assessment was introduced to improve Customs integrity.
 
 
 
 
 
Time Release Survey
China Customs started its TRS project in 9 ports of entry in 2007 and a good range of problems of implementation of TRS have been identified. A common understanding of work plan for further implementation of TRS has been formulated and circulated to customs Ddstricts involved in the TRS project in China.
Implementation of APEC Framework based on the WCO Framework of Standards to Secure and Facilitate Global Trade
On April 1st 2008, the Measures of Classified Management to Enterprises became effective, which shows that China Customs implemented the AEO system in accord with the Framework. 

China Customs and EU Customs finished the legislative comparison on AEO system, and conducted a joint verification audit in 2009.

Two rounds of China-US C-TPAT joint validation pilots were conducted in 2008 

 
Other Issues ( This includes other Customs activities  facilitating trade which is not part of the SCCP CAP)
As in [2008] IAP

	 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Greater Public Availability of Information
More information will be translated into English and uploaded onto the website. It is envisaged that the translation of all available relevant information will be completed by 2020.
 
 
Paperless Trading
To research and explore a new customs clearance system H2010 system.
 
 
 
To deepen the construction and development of China E-port with the aim of realizing single window clearance.
 
 
Provision of Temporary Importation Facilities
To further its efforts in improving the existing procedures. 
 
To extend the application of the ATA carnet in connection with temporary admission.
.
 
 
Implementation of Clear Appeals Provisions
To establish and improve a system governing guidelines on customs administrative actions. 
 
 
Alignment with WTO Valuation Agreement

More activities will be organized towards better implementation of the Agreement.
 
Adoption of Kyoto Convention
To prepare for accession to more Annexes.
 
To continue Customs reform and modernization in order to simplify the Customs clearance procedures.
 
 
Implementation of Harmonized System Convention
To further perfect HS database.
 
To introduce risk management approach in classification operations.
 
Implementation of An Advance Classification Ruling System
More training will be conducted for customs officers to improve the current system.
 
Implementation of WTO Obligations and Rules of Origin
More trainings and studies will be organized.
 
 
 
 
Implementation of the TRIPs Agreement
To work towards more efficient enforcement mechanism between government agencies and to enhance the cooperation with business to improve current operations.
 
 
Development of A Compendium of Harmonized Trade Data Elements
To further the research and study on the comparison during the exploration of H2010 Customs Clearance System. 
 
 
Adoption of Systematic Risk Management Techniques

To further develop the current system.
 
 
Implementation of WCO Guidelines on Express Consignment Clearance
To enhance the security measures of Express consignment.
 
 
 
Integrity
To fully implement the principles and measures set in the blueprint of the customs integrity plan 2004-2010.
 
To continue the efforts to introduce international best practices. 
 
 
Time Release Survey
To conduct another TRS study in the same ports in China and develop a comparative research. 
 
 
 
 
Implementation of APEC Framework based on the WCO Framework of Standards to Secure and Facilitate Global Trade
To deepen the research on AEO 
To further develop AEO legislation

To enhance capacity building on AEO experts

To Push forward AEO mutual recognition with other economies


	Intellectual Property Rights


	In 2009, member agencies of the Inter-agency Joint Meeting for Implementation of the National IP Strategy worked out China’s Action Plan on IPR Protection for 2009, which includes 170 measures in 9 areas.
Information is also available at the following website:
http://www.chinaipr.gov.cn/laws/ 

On December 27, 2008，Decision of the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on Amendment of the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China was adopted at the 6th Session of Standing Committee of the 11th National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China. The newly amended Chinese Patent Law is to be implemented since October 1, 2009.

Information is also available at the following website:
http://www.ipr2.org/ipsearch
On April 22, 2009, Explanation on Several Issues on Application of Law on the Trial of Civil Cases related to Famous Brands Protection by the Supreme People’s Court was adopted by the 1467th Session of the Judicial Committee of the Supreme People’s Court of China, and was put into force since May 1, 2009.
Information is also available at the following website:
http://sbj.saic.gov.cn/flfg/flfg.asp

	China is to make amendments to the Detailed Implementation Rules of Patent Law, and now widely seeking for advice and suggestions from the society.

China is to make amendments to the Trademark Law, and now widely seeking for advice and suggestions from the society.

	Competition Policy


	1. Competition Policy and Laws
The Regulations on Anti-price Monopoly and the Regulations on Procedures for the Administrative Law Enforcement of Anti-Price Monopoly are under formulating.  Thereinto, Regulations on Anti-price Monopoly has been collected advice in public.

The Antimonopoly Committee of the State Council issued the Guideline on the Definition of Relevant Market; MOFCOM, PBOC, CBRC, CSRC and CIRC jointly issued the Rules on Calculating Turnover of Financial Undertakings Filing Concentration Notifications; SAIC issued the Rules on the Procedures of Industrial and Commercial Administrative Agencies Investigating Cases involving Monopoly Agreements and Abuse of Dominant Market Position and the Rules on the Procedures of Industrial and Commercial Administrative Agencies Investigating Acts of Abusing Administrative Powers to Exclude and Restrict Competition.

Since the Antimonopoly Law took effect, by the end of June 2009, MOFCOM received a total of 58 concentration notifications and concluded review of 46 cases among which 43 were cleared without conditions, two were cleared with conditions and one was prohibited.

Information is also available at the following website:

 http://www.mofcom.gov.cn/ 

2. Enforcement Agency
Based on the relevant provisions under the Anti-monopoly Law, NDRC has authorized 31 provincial price regulatory authorities to take charge of the law enforcement work of anti-price monopoly of their own administrative regions pursuant to the relevant provisions under the Anti-monopoly Law and cooperate with NDRC in the investigations of anti-price monopoly.

Information is also available at the following website:

 http://www.mofcom.gov.cn/ 

3. Activities in International Fora
 MOFCOM has maintained its Competition Policy Dialogue with the EU, implemented its cooperation mechanism with USTDA and JICA, maintained contact with antimonopoly agencies of the EU, the US, Japan, Russia, ROK, Viet Nam, Mongolia etc., and participated in the relevant activities organized by UNCTAD, APEC, OECD and ADB.

	-

	Government Procurement


	Transparency
 AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Value for Money
 AS IN [2008]IAP 
 
Open and Effective Competition
 AS IN [2008]IAP
 
Non-discrimination
AS IN [2008]IAP

	-

	Deregulation/Regulatory Review


	AS IN [2008]IAP

	-

	Implementation of WTO Obligations/ROOs


	AS IN [2008]IAP

	-

	Dispute Mediation


	AS IN [2008]IAP

	-

	Mobility of Business People


	China participated in the ABTC Scheme on February 22, 2002 and took effect on October 2003. To date, China has processed around 101,084 applications from foreign applicants and 2,361 from local applicants.
Since 2009, “Special Lane” has been set up specifically for APEC Business Travel Card (ABTC) holders, diplomatic passport holders etc. to go through the immigration inspection formalities at exit and entry ports of China.

	-

	Information Gathering and Analysis


	N/A
	-

	APEC Food System


	N/A
	-

	Transparency


	Investment
AS IN [2008]IAP
Financial Service (Securities)

1. In line with the Administrative License Law and the Tentative Regulations on Administrative License Implementation Procedures of the CSRC, the CSRC has publicized on its website the scope, procedures and standards of its administrative licensing prescribed by the State Council Related laws and regulations are also available. (http://www.csrc.gov.cn)

2. The CSRC has set up a hotline (010-66210182) and an email box (consult@)csrc.gov.cn), which have been disclosed on the CSRC website so that interested persons or entities can make complaints or inquiries on China’s capital market.

3. The CSRC has annually updated and disclosed the electronic version of securities-related IAPs in recent years.

The CSRC strictly complies with the timeframe requirements set forth in relevant laws and ordinances and processes administrative license applications in a reasonable, objective and fair manner. The CSRC also holds timely communications with applicants on issues emerging in the course of review. As for applications that are not accepted or approved, the CSRC gives reasons and at the same time reminds applicants of their rights of administrative appeal and re-application.
	-


	RTAs/FTAs  Note 5


	- Description of current 

  agreements


	China-ASEAN FTA

 

· The Agreement on Trade in Services of the China-ASEAN Free Trade Area was signed in January, 2007 and entered into force on July 1, 2007. The Agreement includes the first package for the schedule of commitments to liberalize trade in services under the CAFTA. 

· The Investment Agreement of CAFTA was signed in August 2009.

 

More information is available at website: http://www.mofcom.gov.cn .

China-Chile FTA

The Agreement on Trade in Services was signed on April 13, 2008. More information is available on website: http://gjs.mofcom.gov.cn
 

China-Pakistan FTA

· The Agreement was signed in Nov. 2006 and the elimination of tariffs on goods began on July 1, 2007.

· Amending Protocol was signed in October 15, 2008.

· The Agreement on Trade in Services was signed in Feb, 2009 and would come into force in Oct, 2009.

 

More information is available at website: http://gjs.mofcom.gov.cn
 

CEPA(Mainland China, Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR)

· The Sixth Supplement to the Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement signed on May 9, 2009 in Hong Kong.

 

· The Sixth Supplement to the Mainland and Macau Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement signed on May 11, 2009 in Macau.

 

More information is available at website: http://www.mofcom.gov.cn 

 

China-New Zealand FTA

The Agreement was signed in April 7, 2008, and entered into force in October 1, 2008.

 

More information is available at website: http://gjs.mofcom.gov.cn
 

China-Singapore  FTA

The Agreement was signed in October 23, 2008, and entered into force in January 1, 2009

 

More information is available at website: http://gjs.mofcom.gov.cn
China-Peru FTA

The Agreement was signed in April 28, 2009. http://fta.mofcom.gov.cn


	- Agreements under negotiation


	

	
	Agreement #1


	China-GCC (Gulf Cooperation Council) FTA, under negotiation.

	
	Agreement #2


	China-Australia FTA, under negotiation.

	
	Agreement #3


	China-Iceland FTA, under negotiation.

	
	Agreement #4


	China- Costarica FTA, under negotiation.

	- Future plans


	


	Additional information Note 6  




Notes

1. 
Economies are encouraged to use the sub-chapter and section headings from the full IAP template as guidance for the appropriate level of detailed information to be submitted in the Update.  

2.
Economies should describe significant new developments under each chapter heading. The information provided should be succinct but sufficient for the reader to understand the outline of the measure being described. Wherever possible all entries should include a reference point (website, document, contact address etc) where further information can be obtained.

3. 
The IAP Update should provide information necessary to bring the most recent full IAP up to date.  

4. 
If there is no significant change to the information provided in the most recent IAP, “As in [year] IAP” should be entered.

5.  Economies will submit IAP chapters on transparency and RTAs/FTAs for the first time in 2005.  These chapters will remain the base document for the Update until the economy submits its next full IAP.  As a transitional measure, economies will also submit a report in 2005 on Area-specific Transparency Implementation using an agreed format. 

6. 
Economies may use the Additional Information section to describe any material not captured in the template.






